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***ATTENTION APPLICANTS*** With the exception of the cover page and signature, 
PLEASE be sure to submit your proposal packages in their original form (not PDF) in 
one ZIP file to CWDBInfo@CWDB.ca.gov  

 
1. Can Accelerator 3.0 grant recipients act as an Innovation Network Hub for the 

4.0 application? 
 

 A. Yes, any past grant recipients may apply for Accelerator 4.0. However, an 
Accelerator 3.0 grantee cannot apply to replicate their current (3.0) project 
nor can they be listed as an advisor on an innovation impact or innovation 
impact network proposal, unless that proposal is replicating a 1.0 or 2.0 
project and all other criteria are met. Funding will be available in January 
2017 for Accelerator 3.0 projects to apply for Innovation Impact or 
Innovation Network projects. 

 
2. Can Slingshot grantees participate in a Network Hub?

 
 A. Yes.  SlingShot grantees meet the eligible applicant criteria and may apply 

for the Workforce Accelerator Fund in any of the project categories, and may 
act as a Network Hub. 

 
3. When does the clock start running on the 12 month grant period?  Is it 12 months 

from grantee notification? 
 

 A. Accelerator 4.0 Projects will have a start date of January 1, 2017. 
 

4. Would it be possible to get a list of organizations who may be applying around 
workforce development in the Sacramento area? 
 

 A. Accelerator 4.0 applicants are not known until the end of the application 
process. 
 

5. Could you clarify what consists of a "New Accelerator project"?  Would a 3.0 
project be considered new?  There is discussion as to 1.0 and 2.0 but no mention 
as to 3.0 grant recipients. 
 

 A. A “New Accelerator Project” would be a project that does not yet exist. 
Accelerator 3.0 projects are not considered “new.”  There will be additional 
funding available in January 2017 for Accelerator 3.0 projects to apply for 
Innovation Impact or Innovation Network projects. 
 

6. Are Accelerator 3.0 grantees eligible to apply for 4.0? 
 

 A. Yes, any past grant recipients may apply for Accelerator 4.0. However, 3.0 
grantees are not eligible to replicate or scale via Innovation Impact or Innovation 
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Network grants.  See questions 1 and 5 above.
 

7. How many grants do you plan on awarding? 
 

 A. 15-20. 
 

8. For the Innovation Impact Projects does the Applicant contract with the Impact 
Advisor or does the CWIB? If it is the Applicant does the Applicant need to 
monitor how the funds are spent. What are allowable costs for the Impact 
Advisor? 
 

 A. The applicant will contract with the advisor and has fiduciary responsibilities for 
the grant.  Be sure to include costs of the advisor in your budget.  Additional 
information regarding allowable costs can be found in the RFA on page 11 and 
Appendix C.  Awardees will participate in an orientation workshop webinar that 
will outline the administration of the grants and allowable costs. 
 

9. Are there any specific outcome measures and expectations for service delivery 
(customers), considering WIOA funding/requirements for the proposed 
accelerator type projects? Ex. include college credit involvements, placement 
expectations, etc.? 
 

 A. No.  In the application matrices, each project can submit anticipated direct 
service outcomes and performance based on project type, but it is not required. 
On the matrix, you can also note what your anticipated performance measures 
will be for project.  You are not held to local area performance (WIOA), nor state 
performance requirements. However, if using these funds for direct services, 
participants must meet WIOA eligibility requirements and be entered into 
CalJOBS.  If you are not currently a CalJOBS user, it is recommended to use 
leveraged funds for direct services as these are short-term grants and it takes 
time to onboard as a new CalJOBS user. 
 

10. To apply for the innovation impact, can the advisor be from 3.0? 
 

 A. Innovation Impact advisor(s) should be a member of a 1.0 or 2.0 project team. 
The State Board will be issuing another RFA in January 2017 specifically for 
replicating best practices from the 3.0 projects. 
 

11. Can WDB's submit more than one proposal? 
 

 A. Yes.  Any eligible applicant can submit more than one proposal. 
 

12. What percentage of the funding can be applied towards planning stages of the 
project/design? Is there a breakdown of funding allocation requirements? 
 

 A. There is not a required breakdown for funding allocations.  In your proposal, 
please make sure that the budget allocations are appropriate to the project that 
you are proposing. 
 

13. Our organization participated in a WAF 1.0 project as a collaborative that had 
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another organization as the lead applicant. Can we apply for a New Accelerator
Project grant if we are the only applicant from the original partnership? 
 

 A. Yes.  As long as your organization meets the eligible applicant criteria, you are 
may apply for a New Accelerator Project grant. 
 

14. Is it encouraged to use direct service delivery for New Accelerator projects? 
 

 A. It is not encouraged or discouraged. We understand that if you are prototyping 
and trying something new with your project that you might want to try these 
new things with current clients.  You may do this with Accelerator funds with the 
caveat that this is a short grant term and the WIOA eligibility criteria and 
application process through CalJOBS can be a longer process. 
 

15. Can you provide examples of "Innovators"? 
 

 A. Innovators should be individuals or organizations that bring new perspective to 
your project.  There is no criteria or eligibility requirements for “innovators.” 
 

16. Are all applicants required to collaborate with local WDB's? 
 

 A. No, there are no required collaborations for the Accelerator Fund.  However, 
applicants must convene a Project Team consisting of Expert, Innovator, and 
Customer representatives as described in the RFA.  These Project Team 
members may or may not include Workforce Development Boards (WDB). 
 

17. Are projects expected to be solely funded by the Accelerator funds, or are we 
expected/able to seek additional funding to support the project 
implementation? 
 

 A. There are cash or in-kind funding match requirements for Accelerator grants.  
(See page 13 on the RFA and the Project Narrative Tables for details.) 
 

18. Can you apply for both an Impact and New Idea project? 
 

 A. Yes, as separate applications.  Applicants can apply to scale and replicate a 1.0 
or 2.0 project and also apply for a New Accelerator project with a new idea. 
 

19. How should experts, innovators and customers be described in Network 
projects? Within each of the new project team descriptions or within the Hub 
team description? 
 

 A. The teams are described on the matrices and narrative pages for the individual 
projects in the Network.  (See page 24 of the RFA) 
 

20. Can one partner represent both an "innovator" and a "customer"? 
 

 A. No.  Different individuals or organizations must represent each of the categories 
on the Project Team (Expert, Innovator, and Customer.) 
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21. In the webinar it was stated that if projects will be using these funds for direct 
services, they are WIOA funds and you will be required to meet WIOA eligibility 
requirements and will have to go into the CalJOBS system – the programs we 
want to include in our proposal are currently in the iTrain system. (And therefore 
part of the EDD’s Eligible Training Provider List (ETPL)) and are eligible for WIOA 
funds.  Is this synonymous with being in the CalJOBS system? 
 

 A WIOA eligibility is required of any participants (job seeking clients) who will 
receive direct services (including training) with funding received through the 
Workforce Accelerator Fund.  Eligibility in this context is not in reference to the 
training programs or the ETPL.  Participants who will receive services must meet 
eligibility requirements and be registered as clients in the CalJOBS system (not 
the ETPL).  Training on the CalJOBS system will be provided to successful 
applicants.  Information on participant eligibility requirements can be found at 
EDD Directive WSD 14-‐‐4, WIA Title I Eligibility (current until the new WIOA 
Directive is issued – presently under development.) 
 

22. Does the Accelerator application process require applicants to submit letters of 
support by the Project Team Members? 
 

 A No. Letters of support are not required, and may not be submitted as part of the 
application.  Project Team members roles and support should be described in 
the Project Team Description (see Narrative Tables beginning on page 19 of the 
RFA for details). 
 

23. For Innovation Impact Projects, is it required that the Innovation Impact Applicant 
be the grant applicant?  Or would it be possible to have the Innovation Impact 
Advisor, a previous Accelerator grantee, be the grant applicant but sub-contract 
some portion of the funds to organization that is actually replicating the model?  
 

 A The Innovation Impact applicant must be the grant applicant.  The Innovation 
Impact Advisor from the Accelerator 1.0 or 2.0 project being scaled or replicated is 
required but cannot be the applicant. 
 

24. The RFP states a 12 pt font size, but the workbook of forms varies from this format.  
Is the workbook exempted from the 12 pt. font size-or should be adjust the font on 
the workbooks? 
 

 A. The Workbook is formatted as it should be used.  Do not change the font size on 
the forms to meet the 12 point font requirement (or to make the font smaller).  12 
point font must be used for the Project Narrative and Project Team descriptions. 
 

25. Can an organization be listed in all three categories of the Project Team—Experts, 
Innovators, and Customers, with different names of individuals representing each 
role?  Would all staff involved in the project be included in the Project Team, 
including non-senior staff? 
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 A. Each project team category should have a representative from a different 
organization. (See question 20).  Each category can have multiple individuals and 
one organization can be represented across the categories, but not solely.  All staff 
working on the project do not need to be listed on the project team description (but 
can be.) 
 

26. With respect to the New Accelerator Projects, the narrative questions are different 
in the power point slide and the RFP. Which questions should we follow for the 
narrative? 
 

 A. Please use the questions that are in the Request for Applications (RFA) beginning 
on page 19. 
 

27. Do all members from the Project Teams have to attend at least three in person 
Community of Practice meetings throughout the grant period?  Or can one 
representative from the Project Team attend these meetings? 
 

 A. Communities of Practice are interactive, working meetings.  We ask that each 
project bring at least one representative from each of the three team categories 
(Expert, Innovator, and Customer) so that your team can represent, share, and 
participate fully. 
 

28. The budget doesn't give line items for expenditures to team representatives. The 
funding each organization would potentially receive would be used for staff 
salaries for their contribution in design, development, and piloting.  Should these 
costs be listed in the staff salaries line item?  Can consortium members provide 
matching funds or solely the lead application can provide the match? 
 

 A. Only salaries associated with the lead applicant should be listed in the staff 
salaries line item on the budget form.  Costs for team member staff or others 
should be included in the line item(s) that members how these costs would be 
reimbursed to those members (e.g. contractual services). 
 

29. Throughout the application I have read "alignment of resources" mentioned a few 
times. Can you give an example of what this means as an end goal of a project? 
 

 A. Alignment of resources refers to utilization of non Workforce Accelerator Fund 
resources to deliver on project objectives and/or scaling and replication of the 
project model. 
 

30. Are any past application that were approved available for one to read? 
 

 A. Applications are available unless the records retention period has expired.  
Individuals interested in receiving copies should submit a request to 
cwdbinfo@cwdb.ca.gov  specifying which application(s) are desired. 
 

31. Does the hub need to be a separate entity from the Accelerator or Impact 
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Projects? 
 
 

 A. The Hub can be a Project within the Network, but is also responsible for all of the 
Hub activities and reporting collective lessons and successes to the state.  
 

32. What is the exact difference of Innovation Network Projects: New innovation 
Network OR Innovation Impact Network? 
 

 A. An Innovation Network of New projects is two or more new projects with a Hub 
organized around a common target population, geography, industry, or approach 
(See page 9 in the RFA).  An Innovation Impact Network is a network of two or more 
projects with a Hub that are scaling or replicating the successful practice of a 
previous 1.0 or 2.0 Accelerator Project.  For the Innovation Network, a member of 
the original project must be included as an Impact Advisor. 
 

33. On the budget form, what is allowable under “on-the-job training?” 
 

 A. On-the-job training (OJT) is allowed under this grant. However OJT funding and 
activities must meet WIOA requirements as directed by the Employment 
Development Department (EDD) and listed on their website.  
http://www.edd.ca.gov/pdf_pub_ctr/de38.pdf. 
 

34. On the budget form, what is allowable under “participant support services?” 
 

 A. Participant Support allowable costs an be found in the following directive: 
https://www.whitehouse.gov/sites/default/files/omb/financial/grant_reform/pro
posed-omb-uniform-guidance-for-federal-financial-assistance.pdf  
 

35. Are stipends for student internships/externships allowed in the grant? 
 

 A. The definition from Uniform Guidance defined “stipends” as a Participant 
Support Cost (see guidance in answer to question 34 above): 

 
 “Participant support costs are direct costs for items such as stipends or 
subsistence allowances, travel allowances, and registration fees paid to or on 
behalf of participants or trainees (but not employees) in connection with 
meetings, conferences, symposia, or training projects. These costs are allowable 
with the prior approval of the awarding agency” 

 
36. What matrix form(s) and narrative(s) are required for Innovation Network Projects? 

Is a separate Overview Matrix needed to be filled out by each of the Project 
projects? 
 

 A. The applicant (Hub) must complete the Network Overview Matrix.  Each project 
within the proposed Network will fill out either a New Project Matrix or an Innovation 
Impact Matrix, depending on the type of Network being proposed. 
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37. Under “Equipment purchase,” If we want to purchase a program-related item 
under this category, do we propose an item and then would receive approval or not 
if we receive an award? If we split the purchase of a >$5k piece of program 
equipment between Accelerator Funds and our match, would it be classified under 
"Small Purchase" or "Equipment Purchase"? 
 

 A. When a sub-recipient plans to enter into a “cost sharing” agreement for the 
purchase of property with a per unit purchase price of $5,000 or more, it must first 
obtain prior approval no matter the size of the portion it plans to contribute. 
Therefore, the purchase is still considered an Equipment Purchase. 
 

38. Can the applicant from a 1.0 project also be the applicant for an Innovation Impact 
Project under 4.0? 
 

 A. Yes, but only to replicate a different project than their original 1.0 project.  In order 
to to replicate a 1.0 Project, the replicating entity would be the Innovation Impact 
Applicant and the 1.0 applicant would be the Innovation Impact Advisor. 
 

39. For an Innovation Impact Project, can the Impact Advisor also fill a role (e.g. 
Innovator) on the Project Team? 
 

 A. No. The Innovation Impact Advisor has different roles and responsibilities than the 
Project Team members, and therefore cannot be a member of the proposed 
Project Team. 
 

40. We will be the applicant for an Innovation Impact Project. As a joint power 
authority, we work with a fiscal agent to receive grant funds. How should we fill out 
applicant field in the Project Matrix and Cover forms? 
 

 A. Please list the fiscal agent as the lead applicant of the Project Matrix and Cover 
sheets, and reference your JPA in parentheses (e.g. Lead Applicant: ABC, Inc. 
(fiscal agent for Beau Co. JPA). 
 

41. In the budget forms, for Innovation Network Projects, should each of the project 
partners other than the hub applicant be listed under “Contractual Services” on 
form G and totaled on line “M. Contractual Services” in form F? 
 

 A. Yes. 
 

42. Can CalWORKs participants (if they are the target population) be included as 
partners in the proposal and represent the "Customers" category, or do all partners 
have to be agencies? 
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 A. Customer members of the Project Team must be able to represent the needs of 
population groups and/or multiple employers who are the target of the project.  
These Team Members must be able to provide direct input from individual job 
seekers from the target groups, or employers who will be utilizing the services.  
CalWORKs participants may serve as the Customer members on the Project Team, 
and as such would be responsible for contributing feedback representative of the 
target population. 
 

43. Are there any match restrictions for a New Accelerator Project? Specifically, can 
other WIOA Title 1 Funds be used as a match for a CWDB New Accelerator Project 
grant? 
 

 A. No.  Any funding source, may be used of the in-kind or cash match for Accelerator 
Projects, including other federal or state funds (WIOA Title 1 funds may be used as 
the match for a New Accelerator Project). 
 

44. The RFP indicates that a form is not provided for the narrative. What about the 
project team description? Will submission of a word doc be sufficient? If so, are 
there any formatting requirements other than 12 point font? 
 

 A. There is no form for the Project Team description; a word document is acceptable.   
Please see font size and page limit requirements for the Project Team description 
on page 17 of the RFA. The Project Team description should be included in the PDF 
for submission along with all other required documents and the Project Narrative.   
 

45. It looks like the Matrix document has limit on how much content can go in each 
box. So wanted to be clear if this was what you intended to limit the amount of 
content in each box or is this a glitch in the copy we have downloaded? 
 

 A. There is an intentional content limit on the matrices.  Please be succinct in the 
information submitted. 
 

46. On Form F “Budget Summary”, the column entitled “Source of Leveraged Funds” 
are the following entries sufficient: 
• Restricted Grants 
• Restricted Government Contracts 
• Unrestricted Funds 
 

 A. Yes. 
 

47. Can new or existing Accelerator 1.0 or 2.0 grantee apply for and be funded for an 
impact grant as well as also applying separately as a project of an Innovation 
Network grant held by a separate HUB? In this case the Accelerator would be 
advancing the outcomes of the same project in both grants, but through different 
means. Eg perhaps in their impact grant they scale geographically and then in the 
Innovation Network they test a new strategy for serving the target population (eg 
use of technology). 
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 A. Yes.  Past or current Accelerator grantees may apply for multiple grants via the 

WAF 4.0 RFA.  Applicants must meet all of the eligibility and other requirements 
identified in the RFA. 
 

48. Are there any requirements for reporting matches in financial reports? Are there 
any financial reporting requirements of the matching agency? 
 

 A. Matching funds must be reported, and grantees will receive training on required 
reporting during the orientation. 
 

49. If grantees currently receive WIOA funds from a local WIB and have already 
enrolled participants in that WIOA program, can Accelerator funds be used to 
supplement direct services (including training) for those participants? Or, should 
Accelerator funds only be used to provide direct services to participants who are 
WIOA-eligible, but not enrolled in other WIOA funding? 
 

 A. Participants may be co-enrolled in Accelerator and other WIOA grants (formula or 
other).  Please see page 11 of the RFA for details. 
 

50. The RFP states to submit the application electronically as one .ZIP file containing 
all required forms.  To submit in the ORDER shown on the checklist, Cover page 
first-then narrative-it would require PDFing forms and inserting the narrative and 
Team Description and New Accelerator Project Overview matrix in between the 
workbook pages.  Can we assume you want the check list, Narrative and Team 
Description, Project Matrix and Project Workbook submitted in the .ZIP file and not 
necessarily in the order listed on the check list? 
 

 A. Yes. 
 

51. Where are Community of Practice meetings usually held and how many are there 
throughout the year? 
 

 A. Locations of the meetings vary between northern and southern California.  
Applicants should plan on three (3) day-long in-person meetings throughout the 
year, attended by all members of the Project Team. 
 

52. For New Accelerator Projects, how does the 1:1 matching of cash or in-kind funds 
work?  
 
For example, if a project has a $100,000 budget, would the application have to 
reflect $50,000 in requested amount and $50,000 in leverage funds? 
 

 A. Yes. 
 

53. In the “Form F Budget Summary” spreadsheet, there are two cells for 
“Administrative Costs” and “Program Costs” (H32 and H33), which automatically 
sum to “Total Award”.  Should the applicant fill in those two fields so that the “Total 
Award” equates to the “Amount Requested”? Or are those fields meant to be left 
blank for State use? 
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 A. “Total Award” is the amount requested, not including leveraged funds. 

 
54. When submitting an application with a substantial portion of the work being shared 

with a sub-recipient: 
1. What budget line item does this fall under? Other? 
2. Is there a cap on the amount that can be given to a sub-recipient? 
3. Is there a 10% cap on the Administrative cost that can be reimbursed to the 

sub-recipient and does the amount reimbursed count towards our own 10%?
4. Are there any other budget or billing-related common factors I should 

consider? 
 

 A. 1. Sub-recipient costs should be listed in Form F as Contractual Services, and 
detailed in Form G. 

2. No. 
3. The 10% administrative limit to the total grant award; not more than 10% of 

the grant funds can be spent on administrative costs incurred by either the 
grant recipient or contractors/sub-recipients. 

4. See the Appendices in the RFA for details on budget requirements.  Billing 
requirements and instructions will be provided during the grantee 
orientation. 

 
55. For New projects, on the matrix, why are we only allowed to check one of the two 

boxes, Employer/Job Seeker, in the Customers column for the Project Team? 
 

 A. Applicants should indicate which customer type is the primary focus of the 
innovation, therefore only one box may be checked. 

   
   

 


